EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11 30
31
DIAM

DIAM Cayman Trust - USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Karla Bodden, Authorized Signatory

Sinead Wagner, Authorized Signatory
KY1-1202
103 30464
PO Box 30464, 103 South Church Street, Harbour Place, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1202, Cayman Islands

03 6212 8316

2021 30 UFJ

DIAM
DIAM

DIAM
One

31
2019 26 2020 31

1/188

111.92



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIAM
DIAM
10
2011 29 2015
1990 22
2011 29
2015
2019 12
2019

2019 26

2/188



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PR DTSR BT AT

U= bTR B
FFELBTI-N Fel o 7 23 ES
EREs R e EEe: v K (5% 2019-04

TRt BEIERASHIU =Lt
R TIPS TreA NAUETY -
FS A e stee - U EF ok fvseFrarnenuy . |
(T 7y FOREDER, B, B FUR R TR - prrine
UT7 L ORISR, BRL vy UiFe R
£
(T7y NOREOREED

\; LRSS U

EREHMATY— PRI ]
fRiTime A5 BHEBHEAIEN
L EE e - fRELZHY
AREEN
BEIZET S mrine g IEEEAR =Tt EHBHEATSH
BRFe= L = FEGHAT - EAsH REZTL ]
AFEEHHFASE I b Weda| vy bwRU AL FE A FET
LR ETT Onef# =1L
(HAFRIZ BV 225 (77 FOBECHIE| (EEEHMIEREL|
M« BERLOEEE| (RUTH=RFEH |bIERICEY 258 |UER - AFEREEA
F2) e C T e FOBE| TREEBL S UIIRESR
7% - 258 750

2020 11 23

3/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company
Ltd.
2019 12
FirstCaribbean International Bank
and Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited
2019 29
Mizuho Bank (USA)
2019 29
One 2019 26
2019 26
2019 14
2019 14

4/188



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2,000,000 2,384
10,000,000 2,000,000
2021 4,661,755 2,174
1990 22
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.
2009 Queensgate Trust Company
Ltd.
2014
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.
2021
KY1-1202
Queensgate 2,000,000 100
Group Ltd. 103 30464
2011 29

5/188

2019

12



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1925

50
150
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

6/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

7/188



26

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
EDINET
23 25

EDINET

198

8/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

9/188



96

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

2019

10/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TrYRRT=IVRT Y - o7 ANRTTHREVERESE (LT,
1 T—= LRz - o7 27 BEVVWET ) ICEBMICRE“L.RE/»S
ﬁ@%f??*ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%mﬁ7??}«*‘@&3{%#&‘*{:*:u'cj‘nﬂﬁﬁ%

)

T—ILET B2 P Fuepl- TOFTV2018RGL. - TS - 9w d 2 - FI—F Tt ES
FIELONET. ~

*7 BEFOFETISSEEAL, BRIELTHBABEELER AL

3 Tro/HRE, IR S ER SR BT T . .

24 PEYTSEFORTESTEETRTECAESHCE. AEEFTrEOESH YT EEEMTIL DR
BELCESE I /EFE LEES RS, FroroER S —EHL FL o BSHC E SE Gl vmEEint
TEETESESHBUET.,

2 77 FIRE R R E BB ERA ORI IVREENSIT—ILF
zv o2 I EOR &S T A EEDELET.

+ B ORISR ERAR F T2V AV ROnei S e FE TR YA/ NOne USA. - AT
HERRLUZHEOHEBEF LB EEHENET.
« ERR SIS R EIENAL. HREEMED BE K E M. BE, O BN A A A 0—-F 58S,
(8% £8P+ v, . BE. O F7. TS TR Ch =Y.
- BRI EHEIENAIEIE 2 T A ET SRS LT,
@ IR EEE TR, RCUAIHEF—ETERCA. SHLEEIEFEN S NSSAOLTNENR TS O T
%ﬁg;fﬁ%}fzmmuz?mi CEREEETLOTE SRS ERONESEFENRETELFBHETE
e ' -
o J=JL 2 - o d THROFEREE S - g T — o EN A TR NET.
BEZ—TIE. E!E-mﬁﬂxb
- SEHPEEN S —(E Hﬁﬁ!ﬂﬁujﬁ %Eﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁm1 FHUONBE RRNEET
Eﬂﬂiﬁ'ﬁﬂhr"ﬁluilﬂlﬂi DKM CRELET.
#5 mmmm&mwm%mmw-
w5 BET SHET 00N ELELETY. T FRERO RN LTI 00N ETEA RS EUET.

| sEmicEu T, [ENSRSREE SR S8 DRt Es s SRLTL RS B ET. |

3 T RREIESEEFI LD ELET.

- S8F5H10B(RRBORSIRERN) FoESFTHELLT. AL TUTORSICE D RED
FEE(TSCEELETY.
O AF SO PN, FR0SHEROIRELILETY.
@ MICIA . TR O REE R — 1AM SEEDT LET,
ﬁmﬁ ot iZ. EEESRELET. I /RO ESENE. TRBRFICE o TROEETLEVERSH
#WEOEETLER2020E5811HELET.
#FROHEREDF LB LT TORHONTRIT S0 TRHUERE A SENSETPEDRSIZE.
HEETLEVESTBUET .

SHO7HI. B{EEERETLE Y. SR TP LT, Tﬂiﬁljiiuaiti%%tﬁn TESHDHER(10%) BBID
iE?‘]Hﬁﬁi’ﬂ?‘ka%PI&*?E@“%L&:‘:H%T”EEUWH? AEEVLEY .
ié????l¢~j—JbF?:ﬁ~t**;*’??.-?iﬁItiqﬂlgfﬁ‘ﬁ’éﬁl‘:ié’:ﬁﬂﬁ'&éﬂﬂ#ﬂﬁﬁﬁwﬁli%ﬂi&tm’f’ﬁg~
HERRDOB{EREFECERSICE. A ETRENREET SN BUET.

wHTFLRE, AR S SEFEEELELETY TEOEFERIT SEOTHEUER A

11/188



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

TV EQEHH (1 X—V)
f TR | | ISR

HOT T — AT
[ TR R AR D) € g — T /AR B AL )

=il

BEZ —A s sy

B T — K A
]

By, S
EL TR S
CeESTET
(FETheEBT TR

v
|
!

SRS e
TR

CZEERET

|

sl + VRA—aHE

w1 J= Ut T2 I35 F i)l FOFT 2020180, - T= b 2 Yo d b= o 2 Ol LB EIENH SHET.
] EIREMEYCHMEMERL O EELET.
&R BOEE -1 o S S T — s S TR (3, SRS T TR, DAV RE SIS LT WLhE T,
% FIEIBBD I BICE L oA AT E TS, TATEFLTLSEOTEEUER A
& ERTARSORTEEF NS AT SRS S . T RETEELWES SR T BT DiC I rrrERE L CES T
FrUFHE RN RS FICR. BAEE T NEER S e E TS EaUET.
FEIFURR HRLETTOR S REESE LETH, RESDOEEC LU ME NS R e TR RS EUET,

EEOEX

[
.

T—IVER - Hud M OEERILRT) (KRR L. RAIC L TRBFTRELET.

12/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

e
#HHE

PN 1A L102.16
B [ KR

SRS "~
» FEUT SR
»EF

VS —3FIE

Camemn o) B | F1E.4Es
' . ELTEIERS
| T ceEmETs

Yl EE

# TERANRETIMBORTE (T—IETL - YF A - TP F vl FOF V20181 - T=ILET - S A - TI—TF - A P DRE
FEUNFERITHESTEENTSENBOSPCHRENEH) TF MRRFIUHYEES > TROER (s IcERLEy.

W T— BT BT R FI— 7 - T (RS SSH) FRiT T 5M%

B T=E T D A DA 2 D= T = F gt b (EREESHOF ST FRE TN 74— MRS

@ MEETEHTASLEMNIBEL. BREL THRBABRITLER A

¥ RS I PRSI DA A—UETY .

# BT AMSORITEESYEET BTSSR EEHCE. R ETEELESFSUET.BE. 2RI L -FHYRSTIANCOLTIE. BITT S
MR (R, T ERTENES) LT METE TS OARRCENE G BSFEUET.
BEEMIITr v EERELERSO P RN TRES RS, P EOBEX —EHL Feg-Ba R, nEEieRAEMT TEE
TEIESHEVET.

# HROFESE0TLVELFETOEHIC DV TRITIOTESUE A SENREFSSHOESICE. SEETHREVESHEUET.

T—=ILRT By I A1 R/E. T=ILRI Y - BwI - TP F 2 +Ib-TOFTITV2018HRITL.
Y- T=IREI By IR TI—T A VIICEBRUENFENET

................................... WREMOSMII—T
He AL EF L H I T —TFr A T
Yed=NFviPulA. | T T 25 R N 7oA 2 2, BV T SRS
_Puss : BECRVOUIRBE B0k 5. DB, BRI, A 22
TN—T 427 DR BRIDISBEITEHAIMED RBY —EAZRHILTIE
Wit BRI 5 — (RE) _ it S BRI T | B69SF ISR, =2 —F— 7 AMIEEL T,
=) L EBOEMAEBTECRAENLTOET,
mEE | #9153J64,850(8M
#2021 FBRFMS #2021 FF6RRE M
SIS FICES AN SABDEODERREUEY, 1A EIL=110.58M (202 1 S 6FR 308 M) TRRLTLEY,
WRNTHAEH IR, i =P -t AR RO F— S ES LI T TR
AT © RAIDMEEBLICP v TR A One (EE AROnefERt

13/188



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

(] P 7 B Bk s f R R D F et

B4 R B URME G E S TERM OB 2 7L v R VALY MOne 7w b
YA MOne USA.-A > 2R ERMELEMBOFHRETFT AT TR EME
HEFRELET. oL UHRRINE—FEONL — VA GE Wi ZER)) 2 7 HiER
A~SUBEIIR A 2D ELT, MG M (Solactiveth ) A AVIZIIHIL T,
SRR Ve S E L SEER ) S 3 [11F (=55 vt e 1 s ot M 47 e e s

HrififE e B KE BN BE. L EMN. A A A0 -7 HEiE
=58 B#F . ¥E8. PV . BE. AT . EmNE

VR R A R, B e REL T OB B R R e e T e
AR el e s oAl S [ EREE I 0L T,

HEMEEO R FC A REFE MR =
_— B

HERERG FRICECn AN TiRrEUER A
ol i L BB B ENELET.

(A W) A7 R~ SR RS LS HRTF 2y P L BB LT AT RO
HReENLET,

VA REOERE %

M LEMEEERETEY, B KRY—ETESIL, B4V EEREMERE NS ILOVTNERART L0 TEEU SR A,
¥, ERIEEE U 27N BT ST O TE), SR~ SNERO R EFEMA TSI LEEE T RO TEREVE R Ak

MBS 31 00SEET SR FEUET.
= FIREIES N R RIS E T IR T % — TE DT,

14/188



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)

OooOoooooooooboooononoad

T WRTY - By ARBOFSRANSEIZ FEEELIWV D ERRD
BHDS,. REETSCEEHTULET.

o BT —10—af (icEHS (30 5HEE) ) EalkED—BELTELSTEEHIXLET.

o N AT . EHGER T — (RIhEMIERRE BNE O oEEHYLET,

= ERERT - EE N R RN O/ Ty T AR LI NN E Y,

1 EELENERERSLTEELLTEI AENET RO TREVES A,

w2 E%ﬂ#ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ‘&!lﬂ. HRPOERERESENFNOESETERLT RHENE T, 2OENE R T ER 0%, @ N3 RS
L™ Tl.ﬂn

| 15— 28

i S et T S = 1 ) -

S — HEEE

+] EET- Aoz, S-S L ONEFT. TOSE, SEERE SR CNIEETY,

3 EEENT— A2 EEM R RS OB S RSEREEN O F L ORE B IRRES T EREE N T oo E) CE iR T SmtD
FELE T QMRS MR RS0 BR RS R AT L0 S ER R e PRIV,
ZMiE. BWERT — 1AL RS PR TN E A
w BT S0 ERN LETH, 7t ER TSR MRNC Ao T 0O ETE SRS FEVEYT,

+3 HERENESISRIEM RS ERLETY.

w4 EINEMIL RN O — A DOl R Y,

B R, SRR R S e o — T T,

(T8E) RFER T — K OHEA X~
o RABER) /(5. BAMBESE (201955878 LIROEHS MRREEE RO 1 FL O RER
(RBRNEREEEFR TR CFHEHT IKRRELEY,

¢ BRI EREERORBNGRNS T FADESE. EEER T - T E0ICEVET . TOBS. 28
EghT—riclagikEREHONER A

| ST BT — it DR
EEEGT— 1 = ERF e R SR O RN

. X EEhER
== BEEFH
#MREL | QOWERNUET L, D RO MM NI & T | CONE TES N AAELE T, 108, IR P PR BT AE A . TO®IC
HEC NS SREE T Ay
156 24 AFE
WIS D R

EWEE
7=

BENEERESTFAT0E RRNSEREN S 0RSRERELS— N ARELET. RS RS T/F A0RESE ERAERS— a0
BUET,

B RS VEET IR e O/ X -UE T,
# Ehomi=ie, IREr 0kl aERL TS,

SHERCECOR T <RBBY SN ER L SN TR B s R T,
W AT RSl T,
BEFEOSESOTLLSATEOERC DL TRET SO TRELE S A S PR 0w &R, sEsThLWESHELEY .
i-
96

One

15/188



EDINETCI I

OOoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooonon(e2s766)

O000O00dooooooooOodaOdn

Dn;" _:.:;_‘é_' 43 kO— tiet? | :|u‘ ) -3 2151.:. 95y o v , e e

ke -

Tt |

One One U.S.A.

96

12 4.5
4.5
100

One
U.S.A.

15

4.5

16/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

200

Q@

2

G

17/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q@

@

18/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
ooooodooodoooooodod

Goldman Sachs
& Co. LLC.

Solactive

One

19/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
ooooooooooooooooodad

OERRITNER
: _ < EAEBLE>: FWO HITEEE
DM B L UER S E <hL=F o ESE > mERIT
<IEERRERE EESHERS

v o |

bt S QU BBE LU S (EEHNEED
<EWAIBLDE. WHIELHE> e LA
EPRREOE=R) Y
<O IFAT IR R ERILNE,
UASERCMTSERSY >

DR ERNOE-S) LT <FIPREEIRLIE >

60 70

10 20

2021

20/188



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.01

HEHH
Ir VR E1@REETSTEEDELET,

e SESH10B(RFREBOBSREERBD) ERREXHBLLT. RRIELTLUTOLHICBIE
RSB EITITELEVET,

@O FlFSFRBODHS ., FROSEEDHEEDHETLET,
@ DITHIA . VBB R ORIRER 7 — R /S DNEEHTLET .

e AR EHEMMESHIRELET . J7 /FOBEEZWE. HTRBEASEFIC L >TRAEETDEL
BEhHUET,

#MOOSEEEILBF2020E5H118ELET .

#FRODTEEOZLVWBRTZOERICOVWTRIITZOOTRBUEE v HEENREENDERD
BE DEEThELWESHBUET.

15

10

21/188



10

(

(
)

)

(

30

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

12

22/188



a

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/188



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

10S ) HREHSOEDRE )

Yo7 R GH* 05 3TMISHS(HERRAECIRBEERU A7EHVET,)ICERALE
TOT. 77 /FOSSMFI OE-VAREGEEEHLFT . CNSOFERICE MR
TARTEAEOBESFICREBLET LT B 0OHF B ST ORBTHEHINT

WBEDTREL. 77/ FOBHEMH 1D VAREGROTEICLY. BEEEY. 88
FTEZEADTENBIET .
Fi WE

<Mz

#F OEF L. A REOERCEEERFLEDT. &0 LR E. —BICh moO M E

TR, 27/ PO DY EEME TR T ERLGET.

EE O VEFRET IR LERSE. B SRE EREERAD N ERCE T

BT —RURGATHLET, SBUSES Yy T AL B SR EmEl T — s

PO, S 0REEEEI -/ O&E gUET MBSO T— LR - Suwd 2m

EBRERCEESEVES T J-IVREY Y - thed A ESEEFTOTRRES =L

LSRR RRERERAONEEN ET TS LCAUSBOT— T/ REN

BETF3EEAFNZB AR MHDES TEL 7/ ROBEIES | DN E R

T ITIEHEEGUFET.

<EESRISENEENA>

WIrVEOEREET — R OB OESS T ZERSRICENRENACEEROE

BEEBUAT | s=iERR LUTFOSEUTE.,

« B RUSE SIS ERARPA OHMBENEDS L UFRSEDICEUMR S N, BEE
SEhNET.AREEEVEEO@EN TEL-EBSS BUER TR TOEE
gi{[ﬁ{lﬁlb{[ﬁjﬁ CTELCRSECE BRI EEEEVAONERSITEIEE

LBET,

« B SEIR EEBRIEMAIL DL TR, AN OHHENLY - AESYRs | =L CE Y
N3, YEES O ERRIRETHORELERIEFET. ZORMRBEEN
M MEaEOEE CH L THRILEC S-S SICE. B S e FeRs st AnIm &
ENTETIURERSBUET.,

«ERSREEERERAOERNEMANEE  EOESANEE BN, 8
Bl B EEEE ISHE0ERIC - THEME M EEHES < Zih 2 8ah
EUET.EMNCEETIESICR.CNSOREES T EESdnr EREEiEnAOm
RO TETEBESGUET.

BIMIEEFOMEIE. T OBTERICRETFBTESBEERFEINIBSICR.FO
FEEEIERLET. 507 /R ERTIMSOETHER. MEETADUEESST
BT EES (Y  T-ILRYY B I A FI—TF A VTR TEHRE. T—ILRT
B R TPAFUAD—TF o A I —FEaF LTI/ 7+ — T A BEES
(CNSIcO=RHRE ET.WMETET (T 72 LN R MIBEHE  UARS IFrUT
{ERUZD FERRRERVRE (RETIUENESHET. L AEBOHEEAOAETTONE
BeOdENSEEEFrEHE T NCBELET. S0/ RETIEEEY - J—LR
N BT 2 P =T A PIHRIPEITVE T B BESORTHER R RILED
ERAFEREL - BETFECMCLUELLETLESS. EDVABIELEES. 7O
EErx Rt Jr/R0R RIS DM MEEEENEL TFEISOEERN
HBHET,

JPURREEOHRS (B8 EE AN FRISLTREISEZTORVAHTY.
i G ) HEMFAOQOUATHFRECLCES SRORBHCORBAETORABIEORESS

gL, AEREEE). JrFORmils | DS UREEEErBLITET 3EE
EFUET,

24/188



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000000000(E25766)
Oooooooooooobooooonoad

SO RETIHELERSR. TR RIS S Es. BT FOERRRY
&L B BS S0 EREAS L<E L. fiiEr —m e EET NS lE s
R FACLICHHEBEL LICT7/RORB IS 1 DS R EEMRES TEL BEZND

ﬁ]_ﬁ‘%ﬁl‘:‘*‘ﬁ*ﬁﬁx FE R ERSOETESOERU ATHBEEELEEBSFICE.
ﬁﬂ;ﬁ;;bgﬁﬁm — YA TEEEY FOS RS AT EPETEO AN
FUET.

HOPVRR ER@EERICEL TEREOEETHFOREEHILETH . I BENS
CHERELLUTICRIFIRAS CLURBETRIT (T 770N EEo 88 . BiTHoR
BEZOOLT.BEHRE ET.WBETRIT(F 724 e LS mIBEHE - VARSI Fr
UL NSO BEARYE 7527 « Oa— LN ES L URERNICETS
ETitle? | CBE I HRTEOMCLVELSBSEEIEY.) SR EERBE (B
TR ESHET. ) L ORSORHEADASNTONELIES. SR SERE.
HETHOBGHEEZES L EHETH - BT oAt O~ YTRICALTES
ESLERE OIS BHEROT S LY YRS ERRE S ES. LU RED
Hs{t@lg tMEETLET. FO8S, YEREARMETRES NI TEDEEY
TEY., 7P UREMESEES QY- EEFETeETEE TO3a e FEUET,

<{BERSLTIRSERBETERT (T 72 LN EBZIEREE>

SHEEY 22 1 BAES L EIRS T O E S84

2. BFERLUELREN R RO LESY, EFHETR VO BENESELTHSE08
FREELTERROILLAIThNE -8 s

LETFHOERSLEBEoaSY RSN BiITFEoRR L 2B oo
AfEERSTRENEES L TN EIRRTTLNESH. AEER
aL.-«:irauz FSOF U EERNELTEERCNSOFERF LT HONAESE
fa<,

4, BT A (B ENSRCESNET.) FRSORFEECE->TETHROIATO
WHERRUCBSCR. SPFERTISC OV T, SERBRTHOR I ERO®R
[CETI% R SR AR ETHOREFHSCMT ZEURA (Council Regulation
(EC) Mo, 1346/2000) LOMF=a0&@0R0] (centre of main interest ) EF73
EoEEicETE, HoACEROESRSELONRES DERNELES

WIOFP/ROBREE QYUK @O HERR. FIRCEESNZ0OTREVER Av.

DS RS EHORE ( A—2) .
HT77VEE, T ETY - S oI AR MICEPLTRAEGV

ETOT. 1 1N UFE S A EHSOHEEDOEEE
BIET. '

’ ’ T=NER B IR WO EREEOER T EERRAOESUTT,
areEaan 8
DRGFEEOEFVAIOBECHSEAA T DR,

B PR A—-TeE)  OSrUNAREEoREETL:  OERIRICRBEEYAD/ T —<VATSE
BOTRESBIE S, '

25/188



4.5

12

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33/188



10

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/188



30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA

FATCA

FATCA

FATCA

36/188



OECD

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OECD CRS FATCA
CRS

CRS

CRS
CRS
CRS
FATCA

37/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

38/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

39/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

40/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OFAC EU
UK

OFAC EU UK

OFAC EU UK

CIMA CIMA

TIA

41/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

42/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

43/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(¢

e )2 DB HEE 2 N\

BRSO ETE BH 74 —7 AR
& 5% ¥ M B KO ESPELD ®ER TV RAEQE-N) LY
EoA) A BT ®EH 74— A ED S $EE

QEEAMFEDYODE=ZS) T EIE
= =

N J

EFRTE S ERE

2021

44/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.17
3,750 AEOI
2,000
100.00
100.00

0.01
3,750

0.100

AEOI 2,000

0.02

0.01
3,750

45/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.50

10

0.50

0.03

46/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.0

47/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

48/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

49/188



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HEENEENICRETSHA

Hlﬁgﬂc, 2.16% (HE2.00%) E LELLT. BEICHI SENSHMRICEDIFREFEERUTRLEL
iFET.

WAFHH

B & FHH

iUEEA.

EEHERED

I ER A

EREEEHETHRENCREYIHR

FrFO RS

AR OFERLI7RLIT (L, Elsd 8L UZRSAENORERRICLT TN ENIERT LS 7508 F Lt
FY. 510, U4 T /HBOEIR B AEO) 2275 4 F L ARE Y —E 0B CHU T E M 2000 E) L OB EEME U
Y. BLUETDMORE - FREHM O ERSEILDNET,

HBUHES (1 000X R ICHEERmORIT ARSI HF O E R E R LET.

FHES HE | NlcTsemoms | 0 wee®
S SR R AR 320,071 %L BT AN - L T e 1
i TTAMHTIRARE | CelcaTs0ORIMAEDIET.) BRI |
o B R D T0.01 %L E SHMEAS L T 04
BREEAWEEN SRS IPYRICH T DRERE T3 TS0 E T ) (5 i)
SFUROMA - BEHOEM, | BRIRMOEE0. 00% EGFRILLY)
BE E BB EPEETAY M OIE. SEEEND | S AT YEROERMEERAEON YIS
REatEMN| O AL | g AR RMERBEUCN | PURBEY—C2OMRICHLT. EM2.000K LD
SICHMTSRE | BEAMENDUET.
, SPURBEMEDRE, M
RESHHEN | SEan SONIE BRMEORASE | BFRADER0.02% EHRLLY
| USnoicHETaRE @ | )
BIESOBETEESE. WA - 8
Ema s wm | BACBI SORMEE. BREEROE | BRENRBOER0.50%L T (BHELLT.
T AR EOBBNERES | 77 RORMERSICEUTS FFac e LET,
EUTNSICHAT 2R
SRMMSI/ | SANNSE S | AHEMEOBECMTIRE |
R FIRAM L Dl RE | R MOS0 S0%LI T (EE R T,
B3 T | ey BEFFrROBERERTY— 1 A L T p
ol T Rl O | Caun | I ROEMRRBITEE T3 FF A e LET.
At 1) ~DiEf,
RTBREER | TREE o= 0L | EIREDER0.03% (F Bl
| SNSICHET SRS
@ B
S PR DT R S O T T A WIS, B S AR T L, B0 RS RE
CEmmnmE L,
@ i
ARSI, T—URTY - S0 2 MORRED T —KHUT 1 0% ER U RE HINEMNE L TIRS
LET. MR B — RN E R RS TRIC T RIS 2 b NES.
TOHROMA: | @ F0itOEEER
F B B SRISORNCSUECIRABESRETRESESL) . BEEHFE00ES  BERA. BRNR0

SHICTPPSWE. FPRCHMLTRE NS8%s. s ER A OBBSLUNE, it B, FES LU
B AEIRCE SRS~ OLEL. SELR S2EREEOERS USSR SOME O D
FRESLUREA SO T EOME. BiE LS ST SN EE000NE . Jr R LUSeLT
FENICCRELI e ET.

Ei’;??ff FEEICOVLTIE, BREESCAVERTIOOTE), BRICHEP LEMSERT T oL

LR EESH MO STESBEMEZTOEEMI. BEHLS 7 FBEE TOMRRM (LU THME RN SVWFET. 58,
HFHRERERERS LU TPV FREEESHEY. JhCFiL b EY,

FHEBLUHASOSHAGLTTO LESESCCNSOIEE BT DWW TR 77 S0l AR ©E S =S RS 0T
RESLHARTET LN TAERA.

50/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
20.315 15.315

2038 20 15
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2021
17,770,321.70 99.44
99,858.90 0.56
17,870,180.60
2,000 100.00

(2021

Goldman Sachs FP
2018

1.730

2024/4/30 |16,703,000 [16,559,354 |17,770,322 |99.44

2021

2021
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2021

(2020 31 19,696,133.62 2,204,391,275 97.04 10,861
2021 31 18,195,683.46 2,036,460,893 106.44 11,913
2020 10 21,199,066.79 2,372,599,555 106.19 11,885
11 21,419,446.04 2,397,264,401 107.56 12,038
12 21,279,387.32 2,381,589,029 107.94 12,081
2021 21,215,358.19 2,374,422,889 107.62 12,045
20,875,995.74 2,336,441,443 106.37 11,905
20,157,208.56 2,255,994,782 106.62 11,933
18,817,074.25 2,106,006,950 106.11 11,876
18,195,683.46 2,036,460,893 106.44 11,913
18,269,512.21 2,044,723,807 106.87 11,961
18,316,586.66 2,049,992,379 107.68 12,052
18,332,404.47 2,051,762,708 108.13 12,102
17,870,180.60 2,000,030,613 106.47 11,916

0.49 55

0.83 93

100 x
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210,962 8,000 202,962
(210,962) (8,000) (202,962)
0 32,017 170,945

(0) (32,017) (170,945)
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fundinquiries@mhtny.com
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FRA

FRA

DPA
DPA

DPA

DPA
DPA

2019 15
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Eurex TMX
Nasdaq OMX Nordic
12 24
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14

10
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2024 10

2020

Title

10
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131

23 103

2021
111.92
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31
305,227 34,161 229,477 25,683
18,059,299 2,021,197 19,578,727 2,191,251
18,364,526 2,055,358 19,808, 204 2,216,934
16,848,615 1,885,697 20,264,780 2,268,034
1,347,068 150,764 (568, 646) (63,643)
18,195,683 2,036,461 19,696,134 2,204,391
72,974 8,167 6,077 680
23,300 2,608 22,964 2,570
22,750 2,546 24,635 2,757
17,929 2,007 19,827 2,219
16,365 1,832 16,522 1,849
6,223 696 6,878 770
4,148 464 4,587 513
3,154 353 4,932 552
2,000 224 5,648 632
168,843 18,897 112,070 12,543
18,364,526 2,055,358 19,808, 204 2,216,934

2021 27

2021 27
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2021 31
2021 31 2019 26 ( )
2020 31
371,465 41,574 353,350 39,547
1,643,138 183,900 (450,527) (50,423)
256,074 28,660 41,697 4,667
2,270,677 254,134 (55.,480) (6,209)
66,897 7,487 68,796 7,700
47,956 5,367 67,651 7,571
24,650 2,759 22,964 2,570
21,242 2,377 25,135 2,813
18,002 2,015 19,827 2,219
15,001 1,679 16,522 1,849
6,133 686 6,878 770
4,735 530 4,587 513
2,760 309 - -
399 45 181,355 20,297
207,775 23,254 413,715 46,303
2,062,902 230,880 (469,195) (52,512)
2,062,902 230,880 (469,195) (52,512)
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2021 31
2019 26 - - - - - -
21,096,200 2,361,087 - - 21,096,200 2,361,087

(831,420) (93,053) - - (831,420) (93,053)

- - (99,451) (11,131) (99,451) (11,131)

- - (469,195) (52,512) (469,195) (52,512)

2020 31 20,264,780 2,268,034 (568, 646) (63,643) 19,696,134 2,204,391
(3,416,165) (382,337) - - (3,416,165) (382,337)

- - (147,188) (16,473) (147,188) (16,473)

- - 2,062,902 230,880 2,062,902 230,880

2021 31 16,848,615 1,885,697 1,347,068 150,764 18,195,683 2,036,461
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2021 31
2021 a1 2019 26 )
2020 31
2,062,902 230,880 (469,195) (52,512)
- - (20,819,400)  (2,330,107)
3,418,640 382,614 831,843 93,100
(256,074) (28,660) (41,697) (4,667)
(1,643,138) (183,900) 450,527 50,423
66,897 7,487 6,077 680
336 38 22,964 2,570
(1,885) (11) 24,635 2,757
(1,898) 212) 19,827 2,219
(157) (18) 16,522 1,849
(655) 73) 6,878 770
(439) (49) 4,587 513
(1,778) (199) 4,932 552
(3,648) (408) 5,648 632
3,639,103 407,288  (19,935,852)  (2,231,221)
- - 21,096,200 2,361,087
(3,416,165) (382,337) (831,420) (93,053)
(147,188) (16,473) (99, 451) (11,131)
(3,563,353) (398,810) 20,165,329 2,256,904
75,750 8,478 229,477 25,683
229,477 25,683 - -
305,227 34,161 229,477 25,683

74/188



a 2020
2020

2020

2019

2020

2011

26

2021

15

2019

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31

2011 29

KY1-1107
25 694
15

96
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2021 31

2021 31

2009
32
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2021 31 2020
16,866,688 18,059,299 20,029,254 19,578,727
2021 31 2024 30 2020 2024 30 1.73 2020
1.75 0.37
2011 29
2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011
29 2019 12
0.01 3,750
2011 2019
19
0.10
20,000 AEOI 2,000
2011 2019
26
0.50
10
60
2011 2019 19
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2019 12
10
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19,696,134
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0.50
100
2021 3l 2019 26
2020 31
202,962 -
- 210,962
(32,017) (8,000)
170,945 202,962
106.44 97.04
18,195,683
147,188 2020 99,451
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2018
2021
31 2021
31 10
1,805,929 2020 1,957,873 2021 31
10 1,805,929 2020
1,957,873
2018
2021 31 25
131,000 2020 183,847
25 129,299 2020 181,827
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2018
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2021 31 2020 31
18,059,299 100.00 19,578,727 100.00
18,059,299 100.00 19,578,727 100.00

12

1970
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2021 2020 31

2021 2020 31

2020 2021 31

2021 a1 2019 26
2020 31
19,578,727
20,819,400
(3,418,640) (831,843)
1,899,212 (408, 830)
18,059,299 19,578,727
1,192,611 (450,527)
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2021 31

5.3 7.0
18,059,299

2020 31

5.3 7.0
19,578,727

2018
96
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2021 31
305,227 305,227
18,059,299 18,059,299
305,227 18,059,299 18,364,526
72,974 72,974
23,300 23,300
22,750 22,750
17,929 17,929
16,365 16,365
6,223 6,223
4,148 4,148
3,154 3,154
2,000 2,000
18,195,683 18,195,683
18,364,526 18,364,526

2020 31
229,477 229,477
19,578,727 19,578,727
229,477 19,578,727 19,808,204
24,635 24,635
22,964 22,964
19,827 19,827
16,522 16,522
6,878 6,878
6,077 6,077
4,932 4,932
4,587 4,587
5,648 5,648
19,696,134 19,696,134
19,808,204 19,808,204
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91,269

2021 27
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2021 31

Goldman Sachs FP 2018, 1.73000%

17,013,000 2024 30 16,866,688 18,059,299 99.25
16,866,688 18,059,299 99.25

16,866,688 18,059,299 99.25

136,384 0.75

18,195,683 100.00
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LSD PRIME ONE FUND () 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MAY 31, 2021

{Expressed in United States dollars)

Ny 31, 2021 My 31, 2020
Assels
Cash and eash equi'\-'aleni: {Motes 2 and ) - 308 227 s Y ATT
Fmuncinl assets ot far vahe through profit or loss (Motes 3 and 7) LB.055, 10 1957727
Tkl wssels 18,364 526 14, B, g
Eruity (Mot 5)
Paxl-m capital 16,848,615 200, 063, THO
Retained eaming s/ Accummlated deficis 1347068 (SER.646)
Taotal equity 16,195 683 14,656,134
Liahilities
Investment management fee payable (Mote 43 72574 G077
Auncit fee payable 25,300 13064
Admmistration fee payable (Note 4) 22,750 24,635
Trustee fee P-:ly:bk -l,‘Np'I.l: 4} 17,505 198237
Manager fee payable (Mote 4) 16,365 16,522
Asml fee |:|:|3,rn.|.1|e ﬂ‘\!ul:e 4 613 G.ETH
Cuztady fee payable (MNote 4) 4,148 4,587
[istributor fee payable (Mote 4) 3,154 4,932
Caher fee payable 2000 5648
Taotal hiabilities 168,543 112070
Total evpaity aned 1iabdlides 5 18,364,526 - 1% B, hing

Approved for issuance on behalf of FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Lamited
(formerty CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limdted), not m its mdividual capacity but solely as Trustee to
USD Prame One Fund (5% 201904, a serigs trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by

JEONY MATELNM Drate: August X7, 2021
ROMMIECUTHBERT

Approved for issuance on behalfl of Gueensgate Bank and Trust Compary Lid.. not in its individual capacity but
sobely as Manager 1o USD Prame Cne Fund (557 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by

SHARON RODDEN Date: August 27, 2021

SIMEAD WAGNER

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Sds
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 221

(Expressed in Umited States dodiars)

Inves tment neooe (losses)

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loas

et change m unrealis ed ap preciation/{depreciation) on fmancal

assels at far valie through profit or loss

et realized gams on financilassets ot fair vahie through profi

ar loss

Mt imves tment income/ {lossex)

Expens es

Invvestment manzgement fee (Note 4)
Distributer fee (Mote 4)
Audit fee

Admin istration fee (Mote d)
Trustee fiee (Mote 4)
Manager fee (Mote 4)

A gent fee (Note 4)
Custody fee (MNote 4)

Other fees

Organization cost

Total operating expenses
MNet operating Income lossex)

Total compeehens ive income {osses) aitributable (o
unfthel der

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these financial statements.

i
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Ferlod from
April 26, 2009
For the (eomunmen e ement
year ended of operations ) (o
My 31, 2021 May 31, 2020

L 371,463 5 353,350
1,645,158 (A50,52T)
256,074 41,697
2270677 (B35,480)
66,597 68,7946

47,956 67651

24,650 21964

21,242 25135

18,0002 19,827

15,000 16,522

6,133 6,878

4,735 4,587

2,760 s

354 181,353

207,775 413,715
2,052,500 (468, 1595)
5 L0525 5 (g 195
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3 NE FUN :
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT QOF CHANGES [N EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR EXDED MAY 31, 2021

(Expressed in United States dollars)

{Accumad ated
Deficis)’
Pald-In Capltal Retalned Farnlngs Total

Balance as at April 26, 2019 5 - -1 - 5 -
Umits subscribed durmg the penod 21,06, MK - 21,056, 200
Units redeemed during the peniod (31,4200 - {831, 4200
Distrbutions to uniholder (Note 6) - (99,451} (99,451
Total comprehensive losses for the peniod - (4659,195) {469,195)
Balanee as at May 31, 2040 5 0164TRD 8 (Seaad8) % 10 696,134
Units redeemed during the year (5.416,165) . (3416,165)
Distributions to unitholder (MNote 6) - (1471 88) {147,188)
Total comprehensive gains for the year - 2 G2 2 il AR
Balance as at May 31, 2021 s 16, B48.615 -] 1,347 (st = L8, V95, GER

The accompanying notes are an intezral part of these finencial stastements.

=

89/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LSD PRIME ONE FUND () 201904
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR EXDED MAY 31, 2021

{Expressed in United States dollars)

Ferlod from
April 26, 2019
For the (commmencement of
yeur ended aper utiong ) to
May 31, 2021 My 31, 20240

Cash fows from operating activitles
“Total comprehensive meome/{losses ) mtrbutable (o Unithakier -3 1062902 -3 (469,195)
Adpstments to reconcike total compreh ens ive mcome! (losses ) mtrbatable

to Unitholder to net cash used m operal mg activilies:

Porchases of fnancial assets al far valoe through profi or loss - (20,819 400)
Proceeds from sak of fmancial aseects a8 fair valoe through profi er loes FALE S0 ELBa3
Met realsed guns on financinl assets at fair volue though profit orloss (256,074} (41,657)
Met change n unrealised (appreciation fdeprec mtion on financial assels at
fasr valie though profit or loss {1,643 138) 450 527
Changes n assets and lnbilites related 1o operntions:
Increase n investmeni management fee payable L6897 6077
Increase m sudit fee payable 336 22964
[(Decrense Vincrease m nclmmstmion fee pl.l}-n]:ﬂ: {1,885} 24 635
(Decrease Vinerease m trastee fee payablhe {1,858} 19,827
(Decrense VIncrease n manager fee payable (15T} 16522
(Decrense VInerease m agent fee payvable (635) 6878
(Decrense Vincrease m custody fee payable {439 4 587
{Decrense VIncrease m distnbutor fee payable {1.778) 4932
(Decrease VIncrease m other fee payable {3.648) 5648
Net cush provided by fosed in) opecsting setivities 2630000 {19,935 857)
Cash flows from Anancing activitles
Proceeds fom subscriptions to Unghobkder - 21,096,200
Redenpiions paid to Uniholder {3416.165) (831 420)
Detrbutions paid to Unthobder (147.158} (59451
MNet cash (used in)'provided by Anancing sciisvities {3.563.353) 20, 1465329
et change in cash and cazh equivalents 5.7 I9ATT
Cash snd cash equivalents at begnning of veaniperiod 229477 =
Cash anid cash equivalents af ond of year/period ] 305227 5 T29ATT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

«Ta

90/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

USD PRIME ONE FUND (£1) 201,04
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Organization

DIAM Cavrnan Trust (he “Trust™) 15 an exemgied unit rust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant
to declaration of trust {the Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 201 1. USE Prime One Fund (5% 201 904 {the “Class Fund™)
is @ serics trust of the Trust which commenced itz operations on April 26, 20019 The Trust iz licensed under the
Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act under section 4 {13(a)} with effect from July 15, 201 1. The Trust’s place of busmess
i5 25 Main Street, PO, Box 6%, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1 107, Cayman [slands,

The Trest filed a securities registration statemnent on March 15 2009 on behalf of the Class Fund pursuant to the
Fmancial Instrument Exchange Law with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Burean and a registrstion staterment
purssent to the Investment Trust Law with the Commissioner of the Firancial Services Agency.

The mwvestment objective of the Class Fund is 1o seek stable income and stable appreciation of the Class Fund's azsets.
The Class Fumd will obtain exposure to the Goldman Sachs 1-Sebect IV Volatility Target Series 96 USD Excess Ketumn
Strategy, a nules-based indexed sirategy developed by Goldman Sachs Imemational as sirategy sponsor.

2 Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been conssstently applied Lo all the vears presented, imbess oltheawize stated

Basls of preparation: The favancial statements of the Class Fund hiave been prepared in sccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) a= issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board, The financial
staterments have been prepared under the higtorical co#l convention, as modified by the revalustion of Ninancial assets
and financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or less,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, [t aleo requires the Trustee to exercize its judgment in the process of appbying the Class Fund's accounting
policies. The areas mvolving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed m 2otes 2, 7 and 8

All references o net assets throughout this document refer to equaty unless otherwise stated. MNet assets per umnit
information as disclosed m Mote 5 has been determined as total assels less total liabilities divided by the mumber of
outstand mg units of each class of participating units.

(@) Stamddards and amendments 1o exizting standards effective Jung 1, 2020

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
June 1, 2020 that have a material effect on the financial atements of the Class Fud.

(by Mew standards, amendments and miterpretations ieaed but nod effective for the financial yvear begmming June 1,
2020 and not early adopied

A mumber of new standards, mnendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning

after June 1, 2020, and have not been early adopted i preparing these financ ial statements. None of these are expected
to lave a material effect on the financial statesnents of the Class Fund,
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (£1) 201,04
ASERIES TRUST OFDIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.__Sighificant sccounting poficies (continued)
Finandal asseis and Habilities at falr value through profit or loss: The Class Fund classifies its investments based

on both the Class Fund's business model for memaging those fmancial assets and the contractual cazh flow
characterigtics of the financial aszets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evalusted ona
fair value basis. The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the
assets” performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Class Fund's debt secursties are solely
pringipal and interest, however, these securitics arge neither held for the purpese of collecting contractual cash flows
o held both for collecting contractual eash Nows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash News i3 anly
incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, all investments are measured at
fair value through profit o loss.

Pramiums and discounts are amostized on an effective interest vield method o the maturity of the investments (o
which they relate.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are these that are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis in accordance with the Trust's documented investment. stratemy. The Trust’s policy i= for the
Investment Manager (MNole 4) to evaluate the information about these financial assets and labilities on a fair vabue
baziz, together with ofher related financial information, for the purposes of making mvestment management decisions,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on shert notice and all deposits
with argmal tems lo matury of nol more than 3 moaths, ANl of the Class Fund®s cadh and cash equivalent balance
a3 o May 31, 2021 is maintained with the Custedian of the Class Fund (Mote 4),

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis,

Interest firom financial assels at Gair value through profit or loss: Interest is recogmised on a time-propotionate

basis using the effective mterest method. Interest from financial assets at far value through profit or loss includes
mterest from debl seaurilies.

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estale, transfer sales or other
Cayman Island taxes pavable by the Class Fund, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial statements.

At May 31, 2021, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil.
However, there 5 a risk that forcign tax authorities will begm seekmg to collect taxes on capital gans camed by the
Class Fumd, without giving sey prior waming and possiblv, on a relrospective basts, Any retrospective enforcament
mary result i a substantial loss to the Class Fund,

Distributions: Distribgtions to the unithelder are mcheded in the Staterment of Changes in Equity when they are
approved by the Trustee (MNote &).

Trandation of foregn currency smgnts: Assets and liabalities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dwollar are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign csrency income and
expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Gains and losses on foreign
currencies are mcluded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the peried in which they arse. The Class Fund
does nod izolate that portion of the results of operstions resultmg from changes m foreign exchange rates on
investments from fuctuations arising from cleanges in market prices of securities held. Such fluciuations are mchsded
with the net realised and unrealized gaindloss) on finamcial asscts at fair value through profit or loss.
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (£1) 201,04
ASERIES TRUST OFDIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EXDED MAY 31, 2021

Slgnificant niting podicies (comtinued

Functional and presentation corrency: ltems included m the Class Fund's financial statements are measred usmg
ihe Unsied States dollar (the “Tunctional currency™), as the Class Fund only invests m one securify denominaied in
United States dollar. In addition, the Clazs Funid has adopted the United States dollar as its presentation curmency.

Participating Units; The Class Fund 1ssues units (Note 51 which are redecmable @1 the holder's option but are
claszified as equity in sccordance with the 1AS 32 amendiment in 2000, Ay distribution on such usits is recognized

in the Staterment of Changes in Equity. The Participating Units can be put kack to the Class Fund by the holder at amy
busimess day for cash egual 1o a proportionste share of the Class Fund’s net sssets.

3. Financial accels at Gilr value theough profit or loss

Financial assets at fair vabue through profit or loss are comprised of:

May 31, 2021 Ay 31, 2020
Amiortlsed Cosi Fair Value Amortised Coxt Falr Value

Structured Mote 3 16,556,688 5 10592600 5 0020254 3 19 5TR Y27

Investment has a maturity date of April 30, 2024 (2020 April 30, 2024) and fixed inferest rte of 1.73% (2020 1.75%)
as of May 31, 2021, During the vear, variable intercst lave of 0.3 7% has been received

Trustes

FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (formerly CIBC Bank and Trust Company
(Cavoman) Limdted ) 15 the Trustee of the Tres pursuant to the Trost Deed dated June 29, 2001 (as mury and amended
fream timieto tise b and the Class Fused pursiant to the Suppleental Trust Deed dated on Mareh 12, 2019 The Tristee
in conjunction with the Manager is responsible for the Trust's administration and management, which includes the
responsibility for distribution and redemption of units m the Trust. The Trustee and Manager have appointed Mizuho
Bank (USA) to provide the diny o-day admindstration of the Class Fund,

The Trustee is entitled to receive, oul of the xsets of the Class Fund. a fee al the rate of 0.01%5 per ammum of the Fee
Amount which iz caloulated by multiplving the nitial issue price by the number of units in issue at the relevant
valuation day, subject to a quarterly minimum fee of US$3,750, The Trustees fees will be caleulated and accnsed
daily and payable anmually in arrears.

Manager

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. (the “Manager™) i the Manager of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed
dated June 29, 2011 (a5 may be amended from time to time) and the Class Fund purssant to the supplemental Trust
Deed duted on March 12, 2019,
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (£1) 201,04
ASERIES TRUST OFDIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Significant agreements and transactions (continued}

Manager (contlnued)

The Manager prescribes managemeent of the Class Fund®s asscts and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fizul. The Manager iz enlitled 1o receive, out of the asets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.01% per annum of the
Fee Amount, subject toa quanterly minimam fee of US 53,750, The Manager's fee will be caleudated and accrued daily and

payable anmually m amears.

Admindsiration

The Truestee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with Mizuho Bank (USA) dated
July 5, 2011 and smended on April 19, 2019, under which that party acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. For
providing administration services tothe Class Fund, the Admmigtrator 1= entitled to receive, ot of the assets of the
Clazs Fund. a fiee o the rate of (01026 per annum of the Fee Amount, The Administrator will also be entitled to a one-
time set-up foe of $20,000 and a fixed anmal fiee of $2,000 for providing AEOI compliance reporting services. The
Admmnistrator’s fee will be caloulated and acorued daily and payable anmaally n arears.

Investment manager

Assel Management One Co., Lid., (the “Investment Manager'™) has been appomied as Invesiment Manager to the Trest
purstant to the Investmeent Management Agreement dsted July 8 2011 and amended on April 26, 2019, pursua (o
which the Investment Manager s authorized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets m each
accoumt, with full suthority and at its discretion.

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at a rate of up to 0.3 per
anmuem of the Fee Amoumt. Such fee muy be lowered depending on the Fee Amount. The Investent Manager's fee
will be calculated and acorued daily and payable annually in amrears, In addition, the Investment Manager will be
enftitled to receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a performance fee equivalent to 1025 of the total pamaments from
the variable rate coupon received for the account of the Class Fund, snd payable annmally within 0 days after the
varable rate coupon has been declared or; if earlier, on termination of the Class Fund.

Custodinn

Mizuho Bank (USA) (the “Custodian™)y has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustee pursuant
to @ custody agrecmnent dated July 5, 2001 and amended on April 19, 2019, The Custodian is entitled to receive, out
of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 00296 per ammm of the Fee Amount. The Custodian i also entitled
Lo transaction foe in accordance with itz nommal scale. The Custodian’s fee will be calculated and accrued daily and
payable anmually in arrears,

Agenl

On March 12, 2019, the Agent Company Agrecmenit was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trust Comparry,
Ltd. and Goldman Sachs Japan Coo, Ltd {ithe “Agent'™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agreanent pursuzmt to
which the Agent, having been appomted by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectuses regarding the units of the
Claze Fusiel to the Tapan Secumities Dealers” Association CJSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unit and subsmit
the documents such a the fnancial statements and other docwments to the ISDA. The Agent Companry is enditled o
receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annum of the Fee Amount. The Agent
Ceompany's fee will be calculated and acorued and pay able annually n arrears.

Distributor

On March 12, 2009, the Uitz Distribution s Repurclmse Agreerment was enfered between Queensgate Bank and
Trust Company Lid, and Daiwa Securities Co., Lid, (*Daiwa”™), under which Daiwa acts as Distributor of units in
Japan =ubject to terms and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class fund, a fec
af up to 0. 50%% per aimam of the Fee Amaeunt whach 15 based on the mitial 1ssue price multiplied to the mimber of
units in izsue al the relevant valuation day, The distributor’s fees will be accrued daily and payable monthby in
AITEATE.

al]=
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (£1) 201,04
ASERIES TRUST OFDIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Units in issue

Subscriptions for Units in ageregate must not exceed USSL billion, The Units are subscribed at the purchaze price of
US5100 per Unit. A sales charge of up 1o 2%, plus any applicable tax thereon, may be added to the purchase price
per Unit. The sales charge, if applicable, will be payable to the Distributor. Following the expiry of the mitial offer
pertod of April 23, 2019, additional Units will not be available for subscription.

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the unitholder on cach dealing day at a redemption price
equal 1o the net asset value per unit as determmed on auch dealing day, provided that the redenption notice has been
received by ihe Trustee not less than | business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

Period from
Agwil 26,2019
For ihe (commencement
vear ersded ol operations) io
My 31, 2021 My 21, 2020
Units maued at beginning of yean period 2002 962 -
Units issued during the vearperiod . 210962
Units redeemed durng the year/penod {32,017} (8,000)
Umis sssued at end of year/penod 170,945 FOL9GE
Met Asset Valee per Unit 5 10044 -3 O7,0e

Asat May 31, 2021, the Class Fund had 518,195 683 (2020: 319,696,134} of puttable financial mstraments ¢ lassified
A% eqpity.

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units. In accordance with the objectives outlined i MNote 1
and the risk management policies in Note 7, the Class Fund endeavours to mvest the subscrptions received from
wmitholder o appropriate investients while maintaimng sufficient liguidity 1o meet redemptions, witls such liquidity
being msgmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary.

& Distribution

The current digiribution policy of the Class Fund is to pay in respect of each distnbution period an annual distribution
following each distnibution record date. The Manager mary declare and amange for the payment of distributions in such
amounis, if arry, &= shall be delermmed by the Investment Manager equivalent to the amount received from the fixed
rate coupon plus the amount received from the variable rate coupon. ifany, after deducting the perfarmance fee, All
distribution amounts will be paid m cash on the applicable distribution pavment date.

Duiring the peried ended May 31, 2021, the Class Fund dec lared dastributions o the unitholder amounting (o 5147188
(2020 $99.431),
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NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Financial risk management

Strategy in usme financial instnaments:

The Class Fund's activitics expose it to a variety of financial nisks: market nsk (mcludmg price nsk, currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit nigk and liquidity risk, The Class Fumd®s overall sk management prograrmme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets amvd seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's financial
performance.

All zeciities vestinents present o rizk of Lot of capital, The maximiim logs of capital on debl securdies is lindted
to the fair valwe of these positions,

i
The Class Fund i exposed (o price volatility risk, Chaseges in interest rates affect the prices of bonds and debentures,
Increase in interest rates generally causes decreases in the prices of bonds and debentures and theretore decreases in the
Met Asset Vahue per Unit The total amount of the variable rate coupon varies based on the rate of return of the reference
indes. 1 the rate of returm is negative, e variable rate coupon will be reduced to zero and the retum on the notes wall be
limited to the fived rate coupon onty. Even if the market mierest rates and the credit status of the issuer of the notes,
CGioldman Sachs Finmncial Products 2018, does not change, i ihe total mmount of ihe variable rate coupon is expecied to
decline due o & deterioration of market conditions where the issuer finances or, due (o a decrease of the rate of reum of
the reference mdex, the notes” price and the MNet Asset Value per Unit wall declmne.

The vestment Masiager inasages: the Class Fuind's investinent eirategy by monitorng the fluctustion of the mate of
retum of the reference mdex. A senszitivity analysis has been performed to assess the impact of movements in the
miarket prices of structures motes as at May 31, 2021 If the market prices of the structured notes at May 31, 2021 had
mcreased by 10% with all other variables held constant, this would have increased net assets attnbutab e to watholder
by approximately 1,805,929 (2020: 51,957,873}, Conversely, if the market prices of the siructure notes at May 31,
2021 had decreased by 109, this would have decreased net assets attnibutable to unitholder by approximately
51,805,929 (H020: £1,957.8735).

The Investrent Manager invests substantially all of the proceeds for the issuance of units in the strctured note issued
by a single 1ssuer, Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018, In the event that nsks regarding the structured note
miaterializes, the Class Fund will be significantly affected and the Net Assed Value per Unit will decline sigmaficamtly,
compared to the case of investiment trusts with a diversified mvestment portfolio,

Interest rate risk:

The sructured note in which the assets ol the Class Fund miy be invested or to which the niles-based indexed stirategy
may be exposed may be subject to price Mucteations througliost their tenor that is, the period from the time of tleir
acquisition by the Investment Manager until the time of their realisation depending upon Eterest rate fluctualions
during such period. In general, as interest rates m the relevant country fall, 2 note's or other debt securite’s price will
rise, anid as mterest rates in the relevant country rise, a note’s or other debt security's price will fall. When interest rates
fluctuate, the remaining tenor of a debd security meludmg a note may be used as an indication of the degree of change
in the market price of such dedt secursty. All else being equal, the longer its remaining tenor, the grester the change
will be in the market price of a debt security including a note for a given movement in interest rates, The MNel Asset
Value may fluctusle as a result of the aforementioned changes on the basis that the assets of the Class Fund and the
rules-based indexed strategy comprise debt securities having differing terms to maturity.
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7 [11 al ri nmagenment

Interest rate risk {continued):

The Class Fund may be subject to a greater risk of rising interest rates than would normally be the case due io the
cusrent period of historically low rates and the effect of potential govemment fiscal policy initiatives and resuliing
market reaction to those nitiatives. Longer-tenm debt secunitses are generally more sensiive bo interest rale changes.
Rising miterest rates aleo may lengthen the duration of debt securities wath call features, sinee exercise of the call
becomes less lkely as interest rates rise, which in tum will make the seciirities mwore sensitive 1o changes in imterest
rates amd result in even steeper price declines in the event of further interest rate increases. Interest rate nsk may be
imcreased by the Class Fund®s investment i inverse floaters and forward commitments because of the leveraged nature
of these mvestments.

During periods of very low or negative mierest rates, the Clasz Fund muy be unable to maimntain positive returms.
Interest rates in masy parts of the world, including the United States, are at histonically low levels. Very low or
negative interest rales may magnify mterest rate nsk. Changing interest riles, meluding rates that fall below zero, meary
have unpredictable effects on markets, may result m heightened market volatility and may detract from the
performance of the Class Fund.

As at May 31, 2021, if the interest rate on USD-dencmmated assets had been lowered by 25 basis points with all other
varmbles held constant, the increase innet assets atnbutable to the wtholder would have been 5131000 (20240
S183.847), anisiing subsantially from the morease in the Gair value of the debt security, I interest raes had risen by 25
basis points, the decrease in net assels aitributable to the unitholder would have been $129, 299 (2020; $181,827h

The Class Fund has direct exposure to inferest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest bearing
assets and liabilites, The above sensitivity analveis mey ned fully indicate the total effect on the Class Fund's net
assets sttributable to the imitholder of fulure movements in inlerest rates,

Beferace strategy rick;

Risks related fo the reference strategy which underlies the Clags Funds mvesetment in the structured note inclsdes
wvolatility and strategy risk and dilitions, The reference sirategy has a volatility adjustment feature which aims to
provide anotional volatility -controlled exposure to the umderlving strategy . This is achieved by periodically incressing
or decreasimg the exposure of the reference strategy Lo the underlying sirategy, based enthe historical realised volatility
of the asset over a lookback period of spproximately 12 months relative to a pre-determined volatility target of 4.5%
An increase in the realised volatility related to the underlving strategy migltt decrease the exposure of the reference
strategy to that underlying strategy and vice versa. The future realised volatility of the underly ing strategy might differ
froen the historical realised volatility of that underty mg strategy and as such, the weight of the underly ing strategy and
the performance af the reference strategy might be different it it was caloulsted kazed on the future realized volatility
rather than the historical realised volatility.

Investments in the reference strategy might be subject to dilution, such that the interests in these investonents might
be limited and might be subject to diltion i the reference volatility as specified m the relevant underlying strategy
supplement exceeds the volatility target. such that investors in products linked to the reference strategy might not
bemetit fully from increases i the value of the underlying strategy. Dilution means that the retum of loss on an
ivestment is subject to a multiplier decreasing exposure to such nvestment and reducing the volatility and risk of
loes chould the value of such nvestment decline, but reducing the patential gam should the value of such mvestment
increase, Investors should be sware that if the value of the underly ing strategy of the reference strategy increases of
decreases, an investment linked to the reference strategy might not have the same magnitiude of increased or decreased
value as the wderlying strategy of the refierence strategy.

I
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2. Financial rik management {continued)

Credit risk:
The Class Fund 15 exposed to credit risk, which 15 the risk that one party to a financial mstrument will couge a financial
lozs for the cther party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The main concentration to which the Class Furdd is exposed arises from the Class Fund®s investments in debt securities.
The Claz= Fund 15 also exposed to counterparty credit rizk on trading denvative products, cash and cash equivalents
andd oiher receivabile balances, The Class Fund seeks to mitigate iz exposure to credit risk by placing its cash balances
and transacting itz securities activity with large financial institutions.

The Clazs Fund movests mdebt instruments and the rules-based mdexed strategy 15 also exposed to deld mstnamenits,
I the event al an isuer goes into defaull o is Bkely to go to default, the price of such issuer’s seciities Muctheste, The
Issuser has invested its issuance proceeds inko its undertving assets, mecluding senior bonds issued by The Goldmean Sachs
Group Inc. and performance-linked securities isaued by Goldman Sachs Finance Corp International including substitute
assets replacing such securities m the event of, or if there 15 a possibality of, early redemption, termination, an event of
defmlt, a wrile down of restructuring or a tax event, The notes are issued by Gobdoan Sachs Financial Products 2008 and
guarantced by The Geldman Sachs Greup Inc. If the creditworthiness of underlying assels or the Guarantor were to decline
zighificantly due 1o, among others, deterioration in perfonmance of poor mamagement performeance, o if i were to go
bankrupt, the Met Asset Value per Unit could be significantly affected and decline significantly.

Portfolio by rating category for cach class of debt securities is as follows:

My 31, 2021 My 31, 2020
o af 5 of
i alge Faefilie o Rain alux  Pegilelic
Structured Note
Mo raling 5 13.55!?&“ 10 O 5 19,573 727 1 0o, CP

- 18 059.209  100.00% 13 19578727  10000%

All transactions are settled paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
a8 delivery of securities zold i only made ance the broker has received pamvment, Payment is made on a purchase once
the securitics have been received by the broker. The trade will fal if either party fails 1o meet its obligation.

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default, Management considers both historical analysis and forward lookmg information in determining
any expected credit loss. Management consuders the probability of default 1o be remole as the structured notes are
guaraieed by the Goldman Sachs Group Inc. with 2 S&P credit ratmg of BEB+ for long-term debt. As a result, no loss
allowance has been recognized based on | 2-month expected credit losses as any such impainment would be wholly
imsignificant to the Class Fund,

In accordamce wath the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Mamager monitors the Class Fund's credit posstion on a
daily bazis.

alfa
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7 [11 al ri nmagenment

Laguidsty risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cazh resources o setile is
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do 30 on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

In the event of market iemoil or a significant deteroration in the creditworthmess of 1sssers or other sumilar siations,
ity of the structured nobes may be sgnificantly lost and the sale price of Bie arectired notes may deviate o the
prices generally expected, causing significant decrease of the Met Asset Vakhee per Unit and losses of investors, Inaddition,
mn the event that the credit risk of the issuer materializes, the structured notes may not be digposed and therefore the
Investment Manager may cease accepling repurchase requests for Units,

Participating Units are redesmed on demnand at the option of the unitholder, However, the Trustee does not foresee
that this contractual meaturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these
instrurnenits typically retain them for e medium to long term.

As at May 31, 2021, all other hiabilites of the Class Fund had a contractual matunty of less than one month. The
Investment Manager mositors the Class Fund's liquidity position on an ongoing basis,

Custody risk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or mdirectly, m markets where custodial and/or settlement sy stems are not fully
developed, The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-
custeddians, in circumstanees where the use of such sub-custodians is necessary, muy be exposed to certain risks. Such
risks melude, but are not limated to, a non-true delivery versus povment scttlernent, a phivsical murket, and a= a
comsequenice the circulstion of Torged secunities, poor mformation in regards Lo corporate actions, registration process
that ampacts the availability of the securities, lack of appropriate legalfiscal infrastrecture and fack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository.

The Class Fund maintains 3 custody sccount wath its prime broker and pramary custodian, Mizuho Bank (USA),
(“Mimho™), Ahhough the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there i no
guarantee that Mizuho, or amy other custodian that the Class Fund may use from time to tane, will not become msolvent.
While both the 115, Banknupicy Code and the Secunties Investor Protection Act of 1970 seck to protect customer
progerty in the evend of a failwre, meolvency or liquidation of a broker-dealer, there is no certainty that, in the event
of a failure of a broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would net incur losses due to its
assets being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately bess than full recovery of its asscts, or both. Because
substaritially all of the Class Fund's assels are custodied with one custodian, such losses could be sigmflicant and eould
materially angair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective.

Fair Valuwe Dizclosures:

In accordance with IFR.S 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair vahie hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the mnputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the followmng
levels:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) m active markets for identical assets or ligbilitics (level 11

= Impuis other than quoted prices mecluded within level | that are cbservable for the asset or Liability, either directly
(that 15, a8 prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 20,

= Inputs for the assei or lizhility that are not based on ebservable market data (ihat is, unobservable inputs) (Jevel
3.

= |-
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2. Financial rik management {continued)

Fair Value Disclosures {continued}:

The level in the Fair value hierarchy within which the fiur value measurernent is calegorized in its entirety = determined
on the basis of the lowest level inpud ilsat is significant to the fair value measurement in s entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an mput iz assessed againgt the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement
uses observable mputs that require significand adjustment based on unobsarvable nputs, that measurement 15 a level
3 measwrement. Assessmg the sigificance of a particular input to the far valie measurement i its entirety requires
Jusdgiment, considermg factors specific to the assel of Lizhility,

The determination of what constifutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
constdders observable dsta to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, rehable and
veriiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the refevant masket.

Agat May 31, 2021 and 2020, all the fmanc] assets held at far value through profit and loss were classified as level
3

Invesimenis classified within level 3 have significant uncbservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or ot 8 all. As

observable prices are not available for these securitics, the Class Fund has wsed valuation techriques to derive the
fair value as at May 31, 2021 and 2020,

The Fellowing table inchidez a roll-forward of the amowits for the period from Juine 1, 2020 to May 31, 2021 for
ivestrnents classified within Level 3. The classification of an investment within Level 3 is based upon the significance
of the unchzervable inputs to the overall fair value messurement. However, Level 3 investments may mclude, in
addition to the use of unobservable iInputs, observable inputs (that i, inputs that are actively quoted or can be validated
to market sources and data); accordingly, the gain and lose in the table belaw may inchede changes in fair value due
in part to changes in observable inputs that are part of the valuation methodology.

Perlod from
April 26, 2019
For the {eommencement
year ended of operations) to
Structured Note May 31, 2021 May 31, 2020
Openmig balance b3 19.578,727 5 -
Purchase of investments i secuntics - 20819400
Procesds from sale of investments in securitics {3418 640) (831,843)
Mt gainslosses recognized in Gair value on financial
assets b far viswe through profit or loss 1,899,212 (H08.830)
Cloving balance $__ 18030299 S _ 158727
Change inumrenlised Tation / recHlion
uﬁfnmml msﬂsam:‘wme lll[::ﬂ]'n prstit 1.':Jr loss 5 1192611 5 5450..‘523

There were no transfiers between levels during the v ear,
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7. Financial ri magenent {con il

The following table smmmarizes the quantitative information about the valsation techniques and imobservable inputs
used for Level 3 investments;

As of May 31, 2021
Fuir Value Valunton Techoigue Unohsavable Inpuis Hange
Structured note £ 15059299 Opfion pricmg madel Valaility 5.3~T.0M
As of May 31, 2020
Fair Yaloe Valation Technique Unohservable Inputs REangi
Structured nole ] 19,578,727 Option pricing madel Volatiliny 5.3-7.0%%

The mrvestrnents in securities (Notes™) are issued by Goldman Sache Financial Products 2008 and guaranteed by The
Goldman Sachs Group Inc.

Their price 15 shiwn as a dirty price and mterest 1= determined by the retum on the Reference Strategy which mtends
to adjest the level of velatility of the Goldman Sachs i-Select IV Series 9% USD Excess Retum Strategy (the
“Underly mg Strategy'™) by rebalancing the basket weight to the Underlying Strategy on a daily basis.

The value of the Underbying Strategy 15 calculated based on the performance, calculated by the weighted average off
ihe value of exch assed.

The MNotes provide a fixed and variable rate retum. The ficed rate coupon 1s based on the market nterest rates and the
credit status of the 1ssuer of the Motes. The variable rabe coupon is based onthe performanc e of the Underly ing Strategy
imdex except that the variable coupon rate cannot be negative. As g result, the varizble rate coupon functions as a call
prodection agans negative returms i the Underlying Strategy,

The vahiation of the fixed relumn portion of the Notes includes observable inputs (e.g. USD interest rate, eic.). The
viluation of the variable rate portion of the Metes mcludes certain unobservable inputs (volatility of the call option)
that when considered in totality, lead us to conc hude that the Notes should be idemtified as level 3.

A change in each mput variable disclosed m the above will resuli in an increase or decrease in the fair value of the
iy estmeniL.

=8
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Investments are carried at fair vahie. The camyimg values of all other financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amortised cost; their camying vithaes are a reasonable approxenation of fair valoe,

Cash and cash equivalents include cash m hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term investments in an active
market. Cash and cash equivalents have been determined using level 1 iputs.

Receivable from investmnts sold and other receivables include the contractual amaounts for setilement of trades and
other obligations due to the Class Fund, Payable for investments purchased and accruals represent the contrachial
amounts and obligations due by the Class Fund for settlemnent of trades and expenses. These receivables and payables
have been determined wsng level 2 mputs,

The puttable value of Participating Units i calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liabilities of the Class Fund n accordance with the Class Fund's povernmg docurments. These Participating Units are
not traded o an active markel. A demand feature is sttached to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders
option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class
Fumd"s net assel value atiributable to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and T

8. Financial instriments by category

Finsncial sssets s
Finuncinl assets at  fair sadoe threngh

My 31, 2021 wmoriised coni prodit or loss Totwl
Assets us per statement of Ananclal position
Cash snd cash equivalknts H 308,227 3 - 5 Jos. 2T
Fruncinl nssets at fair vahe through profit or loss - 18,059,299 15055296
H 305,227 5 18.059.299 5 1364526
Liabilities as per s tatement of Gnancial posidon
Investment management fee payvable ] TrOT4 3 - 5 T35
Andit fee payable 13,300 - 23,300
Admin istration fee pavable 2,750 - 22750
“Trustee fee payable 17,929 - 17,929
Manager fee payable 16,365 - 16,363
Agent fee payable 6213 - 6123
Custody fee payable 4.14% - 4,148
Distributor fee pavable 3,158 = 3154
Other fee payablk 200 - i L1 ]
Mel assels altribitable to Unghobkers 18,195,653 - 18,195,653
£ 18,364,526 £ - H 18,364,526
=19
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FOR THE YEAR EXDED MAY 31, 2021

9. Financial insiruoments by calego) i
Finumclal ssseis at
Finuncial assels ai T sslma throogh

My 51, 2020 ammnrtised cosi profit or logs Tustad
Asseis as per statement of Ananclal position

Cash snd cash equivakents 3 29477 % . 5 219477
Fnancial nssets at fair vahie through profit or boss - 15578, 727 159578737

£ OATT & 19578727  § 15,805,204

Linbilities as per stalement of Guancial position

Administration fee payable i 24,635 5 - 5 4,635
Aundil fee payable 2060 . TEo6
Trustee fee payable 19527 - 19827
Manager fee payable 16,522 - 16,522
Agent fee payable 6ETR - 6ETH
Investment management fee payvable 6077 - 6077
Distnbutor fee payable 4,932 - 4,932
Custady fee payvablke 4,587 = 4,587
Other fee payalile 5648 - e
Wet aesets attributable to Unighobders 15,606,134 = 15,696,134

£ 19.808.204 £ - 5 19,808,204

10, Commitments

I the nomal course of business, the trustes and'or Maniager (“Management”) on behall of the Trist enters
into contracts that contam a variety of representations and warranties and which provide general
mdemnifications.  Manzgement's macamum expesure under these ammangernents 15 unknown, as this would
vodve fisture ¢lums that may be made against Management that biave not vt occurred, however, based on
experience, Management expects the rizk of loss ta be remole,

11, Subsequent events

From Jume |, 2021 through August 27, 2021, there were subscriptions and redemgtions of $Mil and 591,269,
respectively,

An outbreak of a novel corenavirus (O0OVID-197) has developed into a global pandemic and has resulted in ¢losing
borders, quarantines, distuptions to supphy chains and custoameer sctivity, as well as general concern and uncertainty.
This pandemic may result in substantial market volatility and muny adversely impasct the prices and haquidity of the
Class Fund's investments,

==
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EXDED MAY 31, 2021

1. Subsequent events (continied)

Subscquent events were evaluated through August 27, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be
tssued, and there were no subsequent events that require adjustment to, or disclosure m, the financial statemenits.
Heowever, al this time, the Trust is unable io reasosably estinate the mngract on s fuiure financial statements,

104/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UINALUDITED)

AS AT MAY 31, 2021

AMORTEZED FAIR %% OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALUE NET ASSEIS

STRUCTURED NOTES
17013000 Goklman Sachs FP 2018, 1. 730008

due Apnil 30, 2024 5 16BAGAEE 5 18050200 90,250

1 6,866,088 18,059,259 90,25

TOTAL VALUEOF INVESTMENTS 5 16866688 18050 2040 0 250
OTHER ASSETS NET OF LIARILITIES 136,384 0.7%%
NET ASSETS 5 18195683 1L RS

a1la
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2021

17,949,696.18 2,008,929,996

79,515.58 8,899,384

17,870,180.60 2,000,030,613

167,845

106.47 11,916
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2021 2,000,000 2,384
10,000,000 2,000,000
2021 4,661,755 2,174
One
2021 21 400

500
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23 103

2021 30
111.92

109/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

9,684,838 1,083,927 10,242,079 1,146,293
1,099,270 123,030 1,052,219 117,764
443,517 49,638 491,849 55,048
13,124 1,469 6,438 721
62,528 6,998 75,232 8,420
11,303,277 1,265,063 11,867,817 1,328,246
156,560 17,522 177,513 19,867
11,459,837 1,282,585 12,045,330 1,348,113
5,452,331 610,225 6,926,053 775,164
506,225 56,657 478,758 53,583
245,611 27,489 233,763 26,163
6,204,167 694,370 7,638,574 854,909
2,000,000 223,840 2,000,000 223,840
3,255,670 364,375 2,406,756 269,364
5,255,670 588,215 4,406,756 493,204
11,459,837 1,282,585 12,045,330 1,348,113
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
63,993 7,162 101,532 11,363
386 43 10,955 1,226
63,607 7,119 90,577 10,137
4,572,825 511,791 4,586,452 513,316
244,788 27,397 206,511 23,113
38,400 4,298 38,400 4,298
4,856,013 543,485 4,831,363 540,726
4,919,620 550,604 4,921,940 550,864
2,643,805 295,895 2,801,848 313,583
1,018,357 113,975 1,031,475 115,443
361,491 40,458 361,491 40,458
47,053 5,266 48,390 5,416
1,145 128
173 19
4,070,706 455,593 4,244,522 475,047
848,914 95,010 677,418 75,817
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2020 2019 12 31
2,000,000 223,840 2,479,338 277,488 4,479,338 501,328
677,418 75,817 677,418 75,817
(750,000) (83,940) (750,000) (83,940)
2,000,000 223,840 2,406,756 269,364 4,406,756 493,204
848,914 95,010 848,914 95,010
2,000,000 223,840 3,255,670 364,375 5,255,670 588,215
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
848,914 95,010 677,418 75,817
47,053 5,266 48,390 5,416
173 19
895,967 100,277 725,981 81,252
(47,051) (5,266) 60,068 6,723
2,000,000 223,840
48,332 5,409 (27,737) (3,104)
(6,686) (748) 5,073 568
12,704 1,422 21,960 2,458
(1,473,722) (164,939) (2,570,405) (287,680)
27,467 3,074 (9,815) (1,098)
11,848 1,326 11,303 1,265
(531,141) (59,445) 216,428 24,223
(26,100) (2,921) (11,299) (1,265)
(750,000) (83,940)
(557,241) (62,366) (544,871) (60,982)
10,242,079 1,146,293 10,786,950 1,207,275
9,684,838 1,083,927 10,242,079 1,146,293
749 84 12,988 1,454
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2020 2019 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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2019 10
15
2019 60,052

15 2018 10
2018

2020 2019 12 31
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IFRS 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 1,145
2020 2019 12 31
16 12
2020 2019 12 31
12
2020 2019
4,184,838 4,625,137
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5,500,000 5,616,942
9,684,838 10,242,079
2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
310,757 321,228
132,760 170,621
443,517 491,849
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2020 2019
1,560 15,005
52,100 127,120
63,427 60,826
117,087 202,951

2020 2019
(1,145)
1,145

2020 2019
5,452,331 4,322,382
2,603,671
5,452,331 6,926,053
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2018 12 31 824,632 372,854 1,197,486
11,299 11,299
(94,051) (94,051)
2019 12 31 741,880 372,854 1,114,734
26,100 26,100
2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
2018 12 31 724,870 257,839 982,709
26,506 21,884 48,390
(93,878) (93,878)
2019 12 31 657,498 279,723 937,221
25,169 21,884 47,053
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
2019 12 31 84,382 93,131 177,513
2020 12 31 85,313 71,247 156,560

2020 12 31 2019 12 31 173

173
2020 2019
10,000,000

2,000,000 2019 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd

Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee
(Trust) Companies

2020 2019
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2020 12 31 975,610 2019 975,610
2020 2019
12 31
1,099,270 1,044,298
477 2,260
618,720 1,813,355
8,544 5,681
12 31
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
2011 31
2020 12 31
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149,599

41 2019 43
2020 2019
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2020

2019 12 31
2020

0.01  0.15 4,184,838 5,500,000 9,684,838

5.26 1,099,270 1,099,270

443,517 443,517

13,124 13,124

5,740,749 5,500,000 11,240,749

0.004  0.005 5,452,331 5,452,331

506,225 506,225

5,958,556 5,958,556

(217,807) 5,500,000 5,282,193
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2019
-0.85  0.55 4,625,137 5,616,942 10,242,079
5.26 1,052,219 1,052,219
491,849 491,849
6,438 6,438
6,175,643 5,616,942 11,792,585
-0.80  0.20 4,322,382 2,603,671 6,926,053
478,758 478,758
4,801,140 2,603,671 7,404,811
1,374,503 3,013,271 4,387,774
2020 12 31 30 2019 30
505 2019 4,065
30 2019 30
30 505 2019 4,065
2020 12 31 30 2019 30
16,500 2019 9,040
30 2019 30
30 16,500 2019 9,040
2020 2019 12 31 30
2019
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2020 2019 12 31
2019 12 31
56,638 (1,445) 55,193
8,156 (2,768) 5,388
55,901 (2,546) 53,355
64,057 (5,314) 58,743
10 2020 12 31
5,519 2019 5,874
2019
15
2020 2019 12 31
400,000 500,000
2020 2019 12 31
2021 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2020 and 2019

faxpressed in United States dollars)

2020 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Caszh and cash equivalents (Mote 3) L1 9,684,838 $ 10,242,079
Due from clients (Note 8) 1,089,270 1,052,219
Client accounts receivable {Mote 4) 443 517 491,849
Other receivables 13,124 5,438
Prepaid expenses 62,528 75,232
11,303,277 11,867,817
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Mote &) 156,560 177,513
$ 11459837 $ 12045330
'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors’ accounts (Moles 5 and ) $ 5452331 $ 6926053
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Mole 9) 506,225 478,758
Fees received in advance 245,611 233,763
6,204,167 7,638,574
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Mote 7) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamnings 3,255,670 2,405,756
5,265,670 4408 758
$ 11,459,837 3 12,045330
Seg noles lo consolidaled financial sfatements
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
{expressed in United Slales dollars)

2020 2018
INTEREST INGOME % 63,993 - 101,532
INTEREST EXPEMSE 386 10,955
MET INTEREST INCOME 63,607 20,577
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fees (Note 8) 4,572 825 4,586,452
Miscellaneous 244,788 208,511
Rental income 28400 38,400
4,856,013 4,831,363
TOTAL INGOME 4,919,620 4,521,240
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salzries and benafits (Note 10) 2,643,805 2 801 848
Administration (Mote 9) 1,018,357 1,031,475
Rent expense (Male 8) 361,491 351,491
Depreciation (Mote 6) 47,053 48,390
Expecled credit loss (Note 4) - 1,145
Loss on disposal of ficed asset (Mote 5) = 173
4,070,708 4,244,522
NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 848,914 3 67418

Ege notes fo consolidated fnancial statemenis
Page 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’'s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in United States dollars)
Total
Retained shareholder's
Share capital earnings equiby
Balance at December 31, 2018 § 2000000 $ 2479338 3 4,479,338
Met income and comprehensive income - B77. 418 677,418
Dividends (Mote 7) = {750,000) (750,000)
Balance at December 31, 2019 2,000,000 2,406,756 4,406,756
Met income and comprehensive income - 848,914 548,914
Balance at December 31, 2020 3 2000000 & 3255670 % 2 5255670

See noles to consclidated financial stalements
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(expressed in United States dollars)

2020 2019
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income 5 848,914 5 677,418
Adustments for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation 47,063 48,390
Loss on disposal of fixed assat = 173
895,967 725,981
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from clients (47,051) B&0,068
Due from bank on time deposit - 2,000,000
Client accounts receivable 48,332 (27,737}
Other receivables (6,6B6) 5.073
Prepaid expenses 12,704 21,260
Depositors” accounts (1,473,722) (2,570,405}
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2T 46T (9,815}
Fees received in advance 11,848 11,303
{531,141} 216428
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets {26,100} (11,299)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid - (750,000)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (557.241) (544,871)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,242,079 10,786,950
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR § 9684838 5 10242079
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for inferest § 743 5 12,988

See notes to consolidated financial statemants
Page &
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended Decermber 31, 2020 and 2019

{axpressed in United States dollars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. (the "Company™) was incorparated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1980 as Quesnsgate Bank & Trust Company Lid. ("QBTC™) and is a
wholly-owned subsidiany of Queensgate Group Ltd. (the "Farent’), a company also incorporated in the
Cayman [slands,

On January 2, 2009, QBTC underiook a resfructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the: trust activities. Subsequently, onJanuary 1, 2014, the Company underiock a merger to re-combine
the: bank and the trust activities. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Ltd. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Ltd. and is licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
license and Mutual Fund Administration license with the Cayman |slands Monetary Authority ("CIMAT),

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exermnpting it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031. Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consalidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and reflect the following policies:

Basls of consolidation

The cansolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidianies. Conftrol is achieved when the Company:

» has power over the investes;
» s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
= has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whelher or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicale
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

Consclidation of a subsidiary begine when the Company abtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are incleded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains confral until the date when the Company ceases to contral
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated on consalidation. Refer to
Mote & for ather disclosweres relating to the subsidianies.

Page T
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended Decembar 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in United States dollars) [continued)

2, SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Uise of estimates

Financial statements preparaed in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingant assets
and labilites at the date of the financial statements and the reperied amounts of income and expense
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and shert-term deposits with an original maturity of threse
months or less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are tempeorary overdrafts given to clients and the carrying value approximates fair
value as such amounts bear interest at variable rates. Due from clients ane recorded nat of a provision
for expected credit losses.

Cifert accounts recelvable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clients. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expected credit losses. Receivablas
for dishursements made cn behalf of clients do not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as mmembalancas typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects to recover
once billed,

Tha provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credit losses in receivable balances, These are based upon management's knowledge of the current
condition of the Campany's clients,

Page &
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

far the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{axpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

A new fixed asset policy was implemented on January 1, 2019, amending the estimated useful lives of
furniture and computer equipment from 3 to 10 years to 3 to 15 years, and maoter vehicles from 5 years
to & years. This policy was updated as a result of a review of the fxed assets in operation, for which it
was concluded that the actual useful life exceeded the farmer policy. The effect of this for 2019 was to
reduce the depreciation expense by 360,052,

Fived assets are staled at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated ives as follows:

Furniture and camputer equipment 3 to 15 years (2018 3 to 10 years)
Motor vehicles 8 years (2018; 5 years)

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to
determine whether there s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has
not identified any assets for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recagnised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest bearing instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

+« direclorship, trustee, management and other similar services provided to clients,

»  miscellaneous services provided to clients and disburseament charges for services provided to
client in connection with the directarship, trustee and management services being provided;
and

« rentalincome for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from its
clients and excludes amounis collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
managament, and registered office services to its clients. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple

services are provided to a single client, the revenues generated from each type of service are
recognised separgtely.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in Uinitad States dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Mizcellaneous income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overnead and
feas charged to clients for miscellaneous services such as copy servicas for meetings of courier costs,
Disbursement fee ravenuea is charged based on a percantage of the contracted revenue far directorship,
trustea, managemeant and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattem as the revenues
for those services. Feeas charged to clients for miscellaneous services are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they ane provided.

The Company records rental inceme from leasing out their office space fo third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a menth to month basis and is not based on a contract.

Foreign currancy transfation

The Company's presentation currency is the United States dollar.  Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than Uniled States dollars have been translated into United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date, Foreign currency
transactions and income and expense items have been translatad at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and [osses arising from fransiation are included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

Assets under administration

Securities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or 1iduc:iar'_..r capacity are not
included in these consclidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Fimancial instrumants

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisicns of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial Babilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on thelr cash flow characteristics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancalled, ar they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable iz based on expectad cradit
losses. Mo provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2020
as there is no past default experence of the debtors nor has there been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. For the year ended December 31, 2019, a provision far expected credit
losses of 51,145 was recorded.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

fexpressed in United States dollars) {confinued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers,
no provisions are required at December 31, 2020 and 2049,

Loases

Under IFR.S 16 Leases, a lesses recognizes assets and liabilities for all lease arrangements unless the
term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Due o the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Note %) existing as at and during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Company has recorded the month to month [ease costs as rent expense on the statements of
comprehensive income.

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key aroas
of judgement or estimation are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts receivable from clients and due from clients. The expected usaiful
economic lves of fixed assets are based on prior experience of similar assets. Client accounts receivabla
and due from clients are measured as either & 12 month or lifietime ECL bazed on credit risk
considerations,

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2019

Call deposits $ 4,184,838 § 4825137
Short-term fixed deposits 5,500,000 5,616,942
5 9,684,838 § 10,242,079

Short-term fixed deposils as at December 31, 2020 and 2013 mature within three months from the original
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2018
(expressed in United States dollars) {continuad)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income earned by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

2020 2013

Fee income receivables 3 310,757 5 321,228
Receivables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 132,760 170,621
Less: provision for expected credit losses - -
-] 443 517 3 451,849

Fee income receivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change [n credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. [n determining the
recovarability of the fes income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period,

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired

2020 2019
&1 to 180 days 5 1,560 : 15,005
181 to 360 days 52,100 127,120
Ower 360 days 63427 60,826
Total = past due but not impaired 3 117 087 5 202,851

Movements In the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

2020 2018

Balance at beginning of year § - 5 .
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts written off during the year as uncollactible - {1,145)
Increase in proviskon - 1,145
Balance at end of year ] - ] -

Te reduce exposure to credil risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit limits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limits of the receivables porticlio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.

Page 12
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(expressed in Unlfed States doflars) {continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:
— 2020 —_— 2018

Call deposits $§ 5452311 % 4,322382
Fixed deposits - 2,603,671
§ 5452331 % 5926053

6. FIXED ASSETS

Furnitura and
computer
equipment Motor vehicles Total
Cost:
Balance at December 31, 2018 3 824632 % arzes4 3 1,197 488
Additions 11,209 - 11,299
Disposals [94,051) - (94 ,051)
Balance at December 31, 2019 741,880 472,854 1,114,734
Additions 26,100 - 26,100
Balance at December 31, 2020 757,980 372,854 1,140,634
coumulated depraciation:
Balance at December 31, 2018 724,870 257,834 a8z, 708
Depreciation expense 26,506 21,884 48,390
Disposals {93,878) - (93,878)
Balance at December 31, 2019 637,498 278,723 937241
Depreciation expense 25189 21,884 47 053
Balance at December 31, 2020 682,667 301,607 D84,274
Mat book value, December 31, 2018 3 84382 % 93,131 3 177,513
Met book value, December 31, 2020 3 B5313 % 71,247 % 156 580

There wera no disposals during the year ended December 31, 2020, During the year ended
December 31, 2018, computer equipment with a net book value of 3173 was disposed, resulting in a
loss of $173.

Page 13

135/188



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in United States dollars) (continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2018
Autharized:
10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par value each
lasued:
2,000,000 Ordinary voting sharas (2019: 2,000,000) § 2,000,000 § 2,000,000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distributions out of the funds of the Company. No dividend or distribution shall be paid
except out of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. The rights conferred upon the holders
of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless ctherwise expressly
provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the ereation or
izsue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Tilly Nominees Limited and Coultry Directors Lid., and Tilly Mominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiaries listed below are licensed as Nominee {Trust) Companies with
ClIMA,

Place of Proportion of ownarship
Principal incarparation interest and voting power
Mame of subsidiary activity and gparation held by the Company
2020 2013
Provide nominee
Tilly Nominees Limited shareholder services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Coultry Directors Lid director services Cayman [slands 1005 100%
Provide corporate
Tilly Directors Limited director services  Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Pravide company
Tilly Secretaries Limited secretary services  Cayman |slands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company's ability io access
or use assets or settle liabiities of the Subsidiaries,

As of December 31, 2020, guarantees in the tatal amount of $975,610 (2019; $975,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Islands cn behalf of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years endad December 31, 2020 and 2019
{expressed in Uinited Stales doliars) {continued)

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Imcluded in the consolidated financial statements are the following related party balances and

transactions:
2020 2019
As of Decamber 31;
Due from clients 1,008,270 1,044 208
Client accounts receivable 477 2,260
Depositors’ accounts 618,720 1,813,385
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,544 5,681
For the years ended Dacember 31:
Directorship, trustes and management fees 238,800 238,600
Directors' fees (included In Administration expenses) 25,000 25,000
Rent expense 361,491 381,491

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interast rates,

Certain employees of the Company and certain assets of the Company are alzo utilised by the Parant
for its ongeing operations. The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged to
the Parent.

Some of the Company's employees are also providing directorship sarvices to a number of clients who
have deposits and overdrafts with the Company,

The Company lesses office space from 2 related party. The annual lease expired on
August 21, 2011, The Company is currently keasing the space on a month to month basis based on
the prior lease agreement,

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees,
Contributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company, The Company pays the employees’ portion, The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2020 was 5143680 (2019; $149,599) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income.

Page 15

137/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(expressed in United States dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

Afinancial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts invaolving financial instruments during the normal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monitored by management. The main risks
arizing from the Company's financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, Interest rate risk and curmency risk. The exposure to, and management of, these risks is
summansed balow, The year-and flgures reported in these consolidated financial statements for
financial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategles approved by managament,

Cradit and countarparty risk

Credit and counterparty rigk is the risk that ane party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company to eredit and ecunterparty risk consizst primarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clients and client accounts receivable.

The Company manages its exposure to credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fixed deposits
with a regulated financial institution in the Cayman lslands, only taking referred business, and
manitaring outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4,

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by one financial
institution in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, approximataly 41% (2019 43%) of the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees were earned from its three (2012: three) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2020 or 2019,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.

The Company’s objective is fo maintain depositors’ accounts which have a range of maturities
consistent with its asset base. Liguidity risk is monitored by the Campany’s management to ensure
that the Company has sufficient liquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash outflows. The
Company endeavars to match the terms of its liabilities and assets, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
inorder to manage liquidity risk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liguidity gap.

Market risk
Market risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
CLITency risk.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
{expressed in Uniled Stales doilars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interast rates.

The Cempany manages its interest rate risk by ensuring that the interast rate on assets (i.e, cash and
due from clignts) equals or exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability (i.e. depositors’ accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, tems are allocated to
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

2020:
Effective
Interest
Rala Less than  Greaber than
or Ranga (%) On demand 3 months 3 menths Tatal
Monalary Assals:
Cash and cash eguivalents 01015 § 4184838 §  5500,000 § - 5§ 9,684838
Due fram clients 5.26 1,088,270 - = 1,089,270
Cliant accounts recehabla - 443,517 - - 443 517
Cther recahables - 13,124 - = 13,124
§ 5T40746 $ 5500000 § - 8§ 11,240,749
Monastary Liabilities:
Depositors' accounts 0.004-0.008 § 545233 % - % - 5 54523
Accounts payable and accnued
BApENSES - 506,235 - - 508,225
§ S5BO5E5E8 § - 3 = 5 5558556
Sensitivityliquidity gap 3 (217807 § 5500000 3 - § 5282183
Paga 17
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in Unilad Stales dollars) {continuad)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2019
Effective
Interest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%] _ On demand 3 manths 3 months Tatal
Monetary Assols:
Cash and cash equivalents 085055 § 4625137 § 56168942 3 - § 10,242,070
Dua from clients 5.26 1,052,215 - - 1,082,218
Cliend accounts recaiabla - 451,840 - - 481,840
Crher receivables . 6,438 - - 5438
§ 6175643 5 G616842 § - § 11,782 585
Monetary Liabilities:
Deposiions” accounts 080020 § 4332382 5 2603671 § - § 6526053
Accounts payable and accruad
ENpEnses - ATH TEE - - 478,758
5 4804140 5 2803671 % = 5 T.404.811
Sensitivityliiquldity gop S 1374503 § 3m3amt § . 84387774

The Company is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and floating interest rates on its cash flows.

At December 31, 2020, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2019: 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 505 lower (2015: $4 055 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (20419: 30) basis points
lower with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have increased by less than
$505 (2019: would have been 34,065 lower) due to the fact that certain account balances earn interest
at a rate lower than 30 basis points.

At December 31, 2020, with respect to the fived rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2019 30} basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been $16,500 higher (2019: 59,040 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (2019; 30) basis points
lower with all other variables held constant, shareholder’s equity would have decreased by less than
$16,500 (2018 would have been 59,040 lower) due to the fact that certain account balances eam
interest at a rate lower than 30 basis points.

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates look place at the beginning of the year and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting period, Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management parsonnel and represants management's assessment
of the possible changea in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2018,

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
fexpressed in United Slates doflars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds inslruments with net exposuras to the
fallowing currencies: Great Eritain pound and Cayman |slands dellar (2019 Euro, Great Britain pound
and Cayman [slands dollar). Since the Company prepares its financial statements in United States
dollars, the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position are affected by movements in the
exchange rales of these currencies and the United States dollar, except the Cayman |slands dollar
which has a fived exchange rate against the United States dollar. Translation gains/losses arising from
these exposuras ane reported net in the consalidated statements of comprahensive income,

The table below shows the Company’s eurrency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise to the net curency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentation curmency or a currency with a ficed rate of exchange to the
prasentation currency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company attempts to
approximate net foreign currency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2020
and 2019, these exposures weare as follows:

Significant net foreign currency manetary asseats, December 31, 2020 and 2019 (translated info United
States dollars):

2020;
MNet foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’ currency maonetary
equivalents accounis assels
GBP $ 56,638 $ {1,445) 3 55,193
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{expressed in Unitad States dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {confinued)

Currency risk (continued)

2018:
Net foreign
Cash and cash Depositors”  cumency monatary
equivalents accounts assals
EUR 3 Bi56 § (2,768) 3 5,388
GBP 55,901 (2,548) 53.355
$ 64,057 § (5314) § 58,743

Had the United States dollar been sironger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other variables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 31, 2020 would
decrease or increase by $5,519 (2019: §5,874).

i2. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital 1o ensure that the Company will ba able 1o confinue as a going
cancern whila maximising the return to the shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2019,

The capital structure of the Campany consists of issued Ordinary voling shares and retained eamings.

Page 20
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{exprassed in United States dollars) {continued)

13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA. Failure fo mest
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have & direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Campanies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by CIMA about components and risk weightings.

The Company is required at all times to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking license. The Company is in compliance with this
requirement as at and for the vears endad December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company |8 required to mainfain a minimum nal worth of

KXY D400,000 (US5500,000). The Company is in compliance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statemeants were approved by a committee of the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on March 18, 2021,

Page 21
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2021 30
2021 30 2020 12 31
8,842,322 989,633 9,684,837 1,083,927
708,942 79,345 1,099,271 123,030
407 46 207 23
1,818,808 203,561 518,939 58,080
146,103 16,352 156,560 17,522

11,516,582 1,288,936 11,459,814 1,282,582

5,762,541 644,944 5,452,331 610,225
982,080 109,914 630,922 70,613
1 0 0 0
238,488 26,692 120,890 13,530
0 0 0 0
6,983,110 781,550 6,204,143 694,368
1.00 10,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000 223,840 2,000,000 223,840
2,533,472 283,546 3,255,671 364,375
4,533,472 507,386 5,255,671 588,215

11,516,582 1,288,936 11,459,814 1,282,582
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2021 30
2021 30 2020 12 31
30,944 3,463 63,607 7,119
30,944 3,463 63.607 7.119
2,336,006 261,547 4,572,825 511,791
19.200 2.149 38,400 4.298
94.639 10,592 244.789  27.397
2.481.680 277,751 4.919.620 550,604
180,746 20,229 361,491 40,458
1,029.087  115.175 2,051,413  229.594
72,167 8,077 143,660 16,078
172.648  19.323 370,070  41.418
41.376 4.631 78.662 8.804
11,750 1.315 24.300 2.720
129.651  14.511 225.508  25.239
36.305 4.063 74.014 8.284
15.900 1.780 35.180 3,937
62,600 7,006 140,575 15,733
4,854 543 20,232 2,264
1.170 131 2.853 319
25.242 2,825 57.850 6,475
16. 455 1.842 31,128 3.484
4.415 494 15.518 1.737
(990) (111) 25.160 2.816
94,039 10,525 151.419 16,947
20,000 2,238 34,021 3,808
8,221 920 37,329 4,178
354 40 2.342 262
1,300 145 13,297 1,488
12.500 1,399 25.000 2.798
7.247 811 9.442 1,057
0 0 497 56
2,333 261 11,508 1,288
16,448 1,841 30,151 3.374
20,700 2.317 47,053 5.266
17.370 1,944 51,033 5.712

2,003,888 224,275 4,070,705 455,593
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2021 30
2021 30 2020 12 31
477,801 53,475 848,915 95,011
477,801 53,475 848,915 95,011
3,255,671 364,375 2,406,756 269,364
(1,200,000) (134,304) 0 0

2,533,472 283,546 3,255,671 364,375
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Independent auditor®s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, not in its individual
capacity but solely as trustee of USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

Inour opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial
position of USD Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04 (the “Class Fund"), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust
(the "Trust™) as at May 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Class Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at May 31, 2021;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor"s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (1ESBA Code) . We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the Class Fund®"s financial statements and our auditor®"s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Class Fund"s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Class Fund*s financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibi lities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Class Fund®"s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund"s ability to continue as a going
concern. ITwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for FirstCaribbean International
Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited not in its individual capacity but solely as trustee of the
Class Fund in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not,
ingiving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

August 27, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
March 19, 2021
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